
 

Board of Aldermen 

April 2, 2013 1 

CITY OF 

      acific      

 

 

April 2, 2013 * RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

 

CITY OF PACIFIC   

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN 

300 HOVEN 

PACIFIC, MISSOURI 63069 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

he meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor Adams.  

. 

A roll call was taken with the following results: 

 

Present at Roll Call:   Mayor Adams 

   Alderman Arnette 

   Alderman Eversmeyer 

   Alderman Bates 

   Alderman Gass 

   Alderman Reed 

Alderman Pigg 

 

A quorum was present: 

  

Also present:  City Administrator Selby 

   Attorney Vogel 

   Chief  Mansell 

   Collector Kelley 

   Engineer Rahn 

   Public Works Commissioner Boedges 

   City Clerk Barfield 

  

The Pledge of Allegiance was given. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

A. Regular Meeting- March 19, 2013 

 

Motion by Alderman Reed, seconded by Alderman Arnette,  to approve the minutes of the regular 

meeting held March 19, 2013.   A voice vote was taken with an affirmative result and Mayor Adams 

declared the minutes approved 6-0. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

 None 

T 

P 



 

Board of Aldermen 

April 2, 2013 2 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION-SPEAKER CARDS 

 

Mayor Adams reminded everyone, if they wanted to address the Board of Aldermen to fill out a speaker 

card, at the bottom of the card in red, it reads everyone is allowed five minutes. 

 

Reverend Harold Harrison, 1999 Hwy N, Pacific Mo, for Ministerial Alliance, stated he would like to 

offer prayer this evening.  

 

Grant Thornton, 311 N. Seventh St., Pacific, MO 63069 stated he was a citizen in good standing and a 

business owner at 118 S. Fourth St. Pacific, Mo.  He stated he made application for a pawn, guns, loans & 

sales store to be located at 205 N. First St., Pacific, MO, as he owns this building. He read from the City 

Code Chapter 610 and section 400.120.  He said although Pacific’s regulations are much tighter than the 

state’s he would abide by the city’s.  He also read from the staff report of Planning &  Zoning from march 

29,2 013.  He stated he has received support from the community, and promised to operate in compliance, 

and asked that the Board of Aldermen approve his Conditional Use Permit this evening. 

 

April Aubuchon, 136 W. St. Louis St., Pacific, Mo stated she is asking the board this evening for 2 hour 

parking between First St. & Second St.,  on the south side of St. Louis St.  She continued that five of the 

businesses are in favor of this. 

 

Ron Sansone, 137 W. St. Louis St., Pacific, Mo stated he wanted to speak against the pawn shop, this does 

not add anything to the community or that area.  We have kids at the school and guns close to it does not 

make any sense.  This just brings an element of hard core to the town. 

 

Bob Schneider, 1841 S. Hwy N., Pacific, MO stated he is also a member of the IDA, the Chamber and on 

the board at Bank Star.  He is aware that we need businesses and industry in town, but pulling off of 

Osage to First St., is seeing a pawn shop really what you want?  This property is 14’ away from a 

residence, he is concerned about the private school and churches in this area.  He continued this building 

is only 700 square feet, and not enough room for large items. 

 

  

 

MAYOR’S REPORT 

 

Binoculars at Blackburn Park – Mayor Adams asked  for an update from Park Board President Flannery.  

He stated they have been ordered, and were approved through tourism funds up to $ 6,000. 

Mayor Adams stated Alderman Eversmeyer will be leaving the state in May 2013.  This past week he has 

spoken with two citizens who wish to fill the vacancy.  If anyone is interested in filling this vacancy 

please contact City Clerk Barfield to schedule.  He continued that he has heard rumors that a selection has 

been done already, and he cautioned everyone not to get ahead of him.  There is a process of twenty-six 

questions asked. 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION CONTINUED 

 

Larry Mueller, 146 W. St. Louis St., Pacific, MO thanked everyone for their help with the St. Patrick’s 

Day parade.  There were over thirty floats. 

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR/CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

 

Administrator Selby stated about a year and a half  ago request for bids were taken for scanning the 



 

Board of Aldermen 

April 2, 2013 3 

documents at city hall with no bids received.  Since then Da-Com has looked at the records and prepared 

a quote for $ 26,000 for the next budget year.   

 

Attorney Vogel stated a few meetings ago the board asked him to get back with them with an ordinance 

regarding a formal process of a transfer of a deed for the cemetery.  He looked at various other 

ordinances.  The statute does not contemplate land, and there is a provision of after 50-75 years the 

property could come back to the city if the person cannot verify they own it.  The working draft is in front 

of them for review and outlines a more formal process.  He asked they look over it and give him direction. 

 

Attorney Vogel stated he reviewed the decision from the Court of Appeals today. He reminded the board 

this originally started out in small claims court  with Mr. Palmore, the city, and the sexton. The original 

judgment between the sexton and city had no liability, but the monument company did.  From the city’s 

standpoint, it was never a successful claim, and five different judges continued to say no liability for the 

city and the sexton.   

 

Mr. Palmore stated regarding the city taking the lots after 75 years, this must be posted in the newspaper 

and if somebody comes forward they can be issued another piece of property.   

 

Planning & Zoning – There is a meeting Tuesday. 

 

Tourism Committee – Alderman Arnette stated the next meeting is April 1, 2013. 

 

Historical Committee – Alderman Arnette stated they meet tomorrow and they still need the shelving in 

the storage room. 

 

Alderman Arnette stated he thought there would be a Successor Development Agreement at the next 

meeting that includes a siren and financing for Ward 3. 

 

Engineer Rahn – stated regarding the streets in Heritage Farms, some of the owners are ready to construct 

and the issue was with Ameren; they wouldn’t allow the conduit in our right of way and wanted an 

agreement signed.  They have reversed that now, and we can move forward.  Attorney Vogel reminded 

the board that normally with private utility property,  they build it,  or in a subdivision with private 

property the developer does it.  Under their requirement they are required to but they don’t want to, they 

want to be the developer or want the city to pay for it, and do it.  We are not the utility contractor and the 

taxpayers shouldn’t be involved.  He suggested we make one more call and ask for the tariff that allows 

us to do this, Ameren needs to build the lines, we should not build their network.    

 

Alderman Gass stated Ameren has an agreement with the Homeowners Association and Ameren supplies 

the materials. 

 

Motion made by Alderman Gass to have the street department install and Ameren furnish the 

material within 1’ of the right of way, so the homes can be built.  Engineer Rahn stated a contractor 

gave him a cost of $ 7,500 to do this, we could have city forces do the work and pay ourselves.  Alderman 

Gass stated we have the equipment to do it and it is only about 1,500 feet, we are just pulling the string in, 

and the engineer would supervise.  Alderman Eversmeyer stated if the law says Ameren should do it then 

we should make them do the work.  Administrator Selby stated escrow money is available to pay 

ourselves, or we could put it out to bid.  Attorney Vogel stated Ameren is operating illegally and will not 

cooperate.  The funds could be used, but it should be done by Ameren.  We need to tell them again, they 

have to do their job.  They cannot refuse because it is within 1,000 feet of the house that they provide 

power to.  Alderman Reed stated Ameren is not refusing to offer electric; they have a form they want 

signed.  Whoever signs it wants to do the work.   We assured them they would get their services.  



 

Board of Aldermen 

April 2, 2013 4 

Alderman Gass suggested Attorney Vogel meet with the Commission for Ameren.  Mayor Adams asked 

for a second on Alderman Gass’s motion three times, the motion died for lack of a second.  Motion 

made by Alderman Gass, seconded by Alderman Reed to authorize the city attorney to call or visit 

with Ameren before the next meeting to work this out.  A voice vote was taken with an affirmative 

result, and Mayor Adams declared the motion passed 6-0. 

 

City Clerk Barfield stated on the agenda tonight is Bill # 2881, the sponsor of that bill was Alderman 

Eversmeyer.   

 

The Franklin County Municipal League meeting is April 17, 2013 and is an outdoor event. 

 

Collector Kelley stated the funds regarding the taxes for the buyout property have been turned over to 

Franklin County.   

 

Alderman Gass stated he read the paper, and he thinks the county should continue to collect the city’s 

taxes.  Administrator Selby stated the county met today and have given the city until September to make a 

decision and discuss.  

 

Alderman Reed stated Dennis Scoles has bought the Butch & Harvey Building and will be moving 

Christopher’s Corner into that building, and hopes to have it open year round.   

 

Alderman Pigg stated there was a problem with storm water in driveways, but he thinks that has been 

taken care of. He continued he thought Collector Kelley should be given back control of her office and 

involved with the decision of taxes 100%. 

 

Alderman Reed stated on Thornton Road at West Asphalt there is gravel across the road, and asked that 

we check with MoDot about it.  Alderman Gass stated this is a county road. 

 

INTRODUCTION OF NEW BILLS 

 

CONSIDERATION OF BILLS PREVIOUSLY INTRODUCED 

 

BILL NO. 2881 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SCHEDULE IV OF 

CHAPTER 365 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE 

CITY OF PACIFIC TO ELIMINATE THE PARKING 

RESTRICTIONS ON CERTAIN AREAS OF ST. LOUIS 

STREET.   (2
nd

  reading) 

 

Motion made by Alderman Pigg seconded by Alderman Eversmeyer to approve the second reading of Bill 

No. 2881.  As posted pursuant to the ordinance, City Clerk Barfield read Bill No. 2881 for the second 

reading by title only.  

 

Motion made by Alderman Gass, seconded by Alderman Reed to amend the bill to continue parking at 

First St., west on the south side to the end of Kaleidoscope and leave the two hour parking.  Discussion 

followed.  Alderman Reed stated anybody can park in the 2 hour limit spots, but it just limits the time 

restraint.  Alderman Pigg suggested counting the spots, so they are the same in front of the businesses.  

Alderman Reed made one more plea for the downtown business district, and asked how retail will be 

brought back to this part of town if there is no place for the customers to park.  He asked the board to 

reconsider this.  Alderman Bates stated the signs have been gone for six years, and the board never heard 

of a problem.  Alderman Reed stated just because it was never brought to the boards attention does not 

mean there wasn’t a problem.  He continued Handlebars sets out cones in a couple of the spots in front of 



 

Board of Aldermen 

April 2, 2013 5 

their building for the motorcycle parking.  Steve Reed stated nobody ever complained about the two hour 

parking before.  Larry Mueller stated he had a petition for the board this evening signed by 90% of the 

people in the area that do not want the parking signs. He submitted this to the clerk.   

 A roll call vote was taken with the following results:  Ayes:  Alderman Gass, Alderman Reed, Nays:  

Alderman Eversmeyer, Alderman Bates, Alderman Pigg, Alderman Arnette.  Whereupon, Mayor Adams 

declared the motion failed 4-2, with the amendment. 

 

A roll call vote was taken on Bill # 2881 as it was read with the following results:  Ayes:  Alderman 

Bates, Alderman Pigg, Alderman Arnette,  Alderman Eversmeyer.  Nays:  Alderman Gass, Alderman 

Reed.  Whereupon, Mayor Adams declared Bill No. 2881 approved 4-2 and it became Ordinance No. 

2861. 

 

NEW BUSINESS  

 

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS  
 

A.  Approve list of bills. 

 

Motion made by Alderman Gass, seconded by Alderman Reed to approve the list of bills. A voice vote 

was taken with an affirmative result, and Mayor Adams declared the motion approved 6-0. 

 

B.  Approve Amended 2012-2013 Annual Budget for Viaduct Cid. 

 

Motion made by Alderman Arnette, seconded by Alderman Reed, to approve the Amended 2012-2013 

Annual Budget for Viaduct Cid.  A voice vote was taken with an affirmative result, and Mayor Adams 

declared the motion approved 6-0. 

 

 C.  Approve 2013-2014 Annual Budget for Viaduct Cid. 

 

Motion made by Alderman Eversmeyer, seconded by Alderman Reed to approve the Viaduct CID 2013-

2014 annual budget.  A voice vote was taken with an affirmative result, and Mayor Adams declared the 

motion approved 6-0. 

 

 D.  Approve use of council room on March 26, 2013 at :30 p.m. for Eagles View Subdivision. 

 

Engineer Rahn stated the date has changed, but pending.  Motion made by Alderman Pigg, seconded by 

Alderman Reed to approve the use of the council room for Eagles View Subdivision with date pending.  

A voice vote was taken with an affirmative result, and Mayor Adams declared the motion approved 6-0. 

 

TOURISM EXPENSES 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION RSMO 610.021 (1)(2)(3) 

 

Mayor Adams stated he would like to go into executive session under RSMO. 610.021 (1) (2). 

 

Motion made by Alderman Pigg, seconded by Alderman Gass to go into executive session under RSMO. 

610.021 (1)(2).  A roll call vote was taken with the following results:  Ayes:  Alderman Bates, Alderman 

Gass, Alderman Reed, Alderman Pigg, Alderman Arnette, Alderman Eversmeyer.  Nays:  none.  

Whereupon, Mayor Adams declared the motion approved 6-0. 

 

The Board went into executive session at 8:56 p.m. 



 

Board of Aldermen 

April 2, 2013 6 

 

The Board reconvened at 9:30 p.m.   

 

A roll call vote was taken :  Present at roll call:  Alderman Arnette, Alderman Eversmeyer, Alderman 

Bates, Alderman Gass, Alderman Reed, Alderman Pigg. 

 

RECEIVED AND FILED 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business, motion made by Alderman Arnette,   seconded by Alderman Eversmeyer 

to adjourn.  A voice vote was taken with an affirmative result and Mayor Adams declared the motion 

approved 6-0 

 

The meeting adjourned at 9:31 p.m.   APPROVED 

       ______________________________ 

       Herbert C. Adams, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


